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STATE OF CALIFORNIA
DECISION OF THE
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD
SAN DIEGO FIREFIGHTERS, LOCAL 145,
I.A.F.F.,
Charging Party,

Case No. LA-CE-294-M
PERB Decision No. 2103-M

V.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO (OFFICE OF THE CITY
ATTORNEY),

March 26, 2010

Respondent.
Appearances: Glaser, Weil, Fink, Jacobs & Shapiro by Joel N. Klevens, Attorney, for
San Diego Firefighters, Local 145, I.A.F.F.; Michael J. Aguirre, City Attorney, for City of
San Diego (Office of the City Attorney).
Before Dowdin Calvillo, Acting Chair; McKeag and Wesley, Members.
DECISION
WESLEY, Member: This case is before the Public Employment Relations Board
(PERB or Board) on exceptions filed by the City of San Diego (Office of the City Attorney)
(City) to the proposed decision of an administrative law judge (ALJ). The San Diego
Firefighters, Local 145, I.A.F.F. (Local 145) alleged that the City violated the Meyers-Milias
Brown Act (MMBA) 1 and PERB regulations2 when it: (1) requested that Local 145's
international affiliate suspend the Local 145 president because he had been indicted on
criminal charges; (2) requested that the Local 145 bargaining team negotiator step down as he

1

MMBA is codified at Government Code section 3500 et seq. The complaint alleged a
violation of Sections 3502, 3503, 3505, 3506 and 3509(b).
2

PERB regulations are codified at California Code of Regulations, title 8,
section 31001 et seq. The complaint alleged a violation of PERB Regulation 32603(a), (b), (c)
and (d).
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in the
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criminal
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for the
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the
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in the
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by the
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the cost
cost of
of the
the benefit
benefit to
to the
the retirement
retirement system.
system. As
result, employees
employees were
were allowed
allowed to
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delayedseveral
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problem. InIn2003,
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theservice
servicecredit
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purchase price,
price, but
butgave
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employees three
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months to
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completepurchases
purchases under
under the
the discounted
discounted
purchase
pricingarrangement.
arrangement.
pricing
The city
city attorney
attorney estimated
estimated the
the service
service credit
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pricing error
errorcost
costCity
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$14 7 million.
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the
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reversal of
of
of
pending at
at the
thetime
time included
included civil
civil provisions
the
challenged transactions.
transactions.
the challenged
On March
March 7,7, 2006,
2006, the
the city
cityattorney
attorneyissued
issuedaapress
press release
release that
that stated
stated the
the purchase
purchase of
of
On
the underpriced
underpriced service
The
the
service credits
credits was
was legally
legally unauthorized
unauthorized and
andviolated
violated the
the City
City Charter.
Charter. The
press release
any employee
purchase of
press
release announced
announcedthe
theCity
Citywould
would allow
allow any
employee to
to rescind
rescind their
their purchase
of
5

service credits."
credits. Aguirre's
Aguirre'spress
pressrelease
release directed
directed employees
employees to
to the
the city
cityattorney's
attorney'swebsite
website
service
where the
the employees
employees could
initiate
where
could access
accessaaform
formcreated
createdbybythe
theCity
CityAttorney's
Attorney's Office
Office to
to initiate
service
credit rescission
rescission requests.
requests. The
TheRequest
Request to
to Rescind
Rescind Purchase
Purchase of
ofProspective
Prospective Service
Service
service credit
Credit Agreement
Agreement form
form was
was posted
posted with
withinstructions
instructionsthat
thatstated:
stated:
Credit

INFORMATIONALSTATEMENT
STATEMENTREGARDING
REGARDING
INFORMATIONAL
RESCISSION OF
OF PURCHASE
PURCHASEOF
OFPROSPECTIVE
PROSPECTIVE
RESCISSION
SERVICE
CREDIT
AGREEMENT
SERVICE CREDIT AGREEMENT
As you
youknow,
know,the
theCity
CityAttorney
Attorneyhas
hasconcluded
concludedthat
thatthe
thepurchase
purchase
As
of
prospective
service
credit,
or
airtime,
from
the
San
Diego
City
of prospective service credit, or airtime, from the San Diego City
Employees'
Retirement System
System ('SDCERS')
('SDCERS')below
belowfull
fullcost
costwas
was
Employees' Retirement
not authorized
authorized under
you would
would like
like to
to rescind
rescind this
this
not
underthe
thelaw.
law. If
If you
legally unauthorized
unauthorized purchase,
purchase, the
below is
is provided
provided
legally
the information
information below
for
your
benefit.
You
should,
however,
consult
with
an
attorney
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SPSP),
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to SDCERS
SDCERS
401(k) plan or the SPSP), the
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transferred directly
directlyback
backto
tothe
theapplicable
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plan.
could
Because
the
funds
would
be
transferred
directly
from
Because the funds would be transferred directly from
SDCERS to
to the
the other
otherplan,
plan,and
andwould
wouldnot
notbebemade
made
SDCERS
available directly
directlytotoyou,
you,the
thetransaction
transactionshould
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notresult
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These
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AlthoughLocal
Local145
145was
wasthe
theonly
onlyunion
uniontotofile
fileananunfair
unfairpractice
practicecharge
chargechallenging
challenging
Although
the
city
attorney's
actions,
the
press
release
and
website
posting
were
directed
toward
all City
City
the city attorney's actions, the press release and website posting were directed toward all
employees.
employees.
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refunded to
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contribution plan
to
that
plan's
rules
regarding
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A transfer
transfer back
back to
to aa qualified
qualified plan
plan will
willresult
resultininaasmall
small
A
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by
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transactional fee charged by the
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qualified plan
This fee
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wouldbe
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bythe
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Accompanying this
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statement is
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writtenagreement
agreement for
for
Accompanying
download and
and execution
executiontotocommence
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thePSC
PSCreversal
reversalrequest
request
download
process.
Employees
are
encouraged
to
review
it,
obtain
process. Employees are encouraged to review it, obtain
professional advice
advice as
as needed
needed and
and desired,
desired, execute
execute the
the document
document
professional
if
desired,
and
submit
same
to
SDCERS
for implementation.
implementation.
if desired, and submit same to SDCERS for
Please be
may deny
deny your
your request
request for
foraa
Please
be aware
aware that
that SDCERS
SDCERS may
transfer
of
your
service
credit
payment
to
another
plan
asaa
transfer of your service credit payment to another plan ororas
refund to
to you.
you. SDCERS
SDCERShas
hastaken
takenthe
theposition
positionthat
thattransfers
transfersback
back
refund
to the
the defined
defined contribution
contributionplans
planssuch
suchasasSPSP
SPSP and
and 401(k)
401 (k)cannot
cannot
to
be permitted
permitted without
withoutjeopardizing
jeopardizingthe
thetax-qualified
tax-qualifiedstatus
statusofofthose
those
be
plans. SDCERS
SDCERShas
has also
also stated
stated that
your payroll
payroll
plans.
that refunds
refunds of
of your
deposits
youselected
selected the
the installment
installment
deposits are
are permitted
permitted only
only ififyou
purchase
payments. We
Weare
are
purchase method
method and
and have
have not
not made
made all
all payments.
attempting to
to resolve
resolvethese
these matters
matters with
withSDCERS.
SDCERS.
attempting
(Emphasis
original.)
(Emphasis in
in original.)
Neitherthe
the city
cityattorney
attorney nor
nor any
any other
other City
Cityofficial
officialgave
gaveadvance
advance notice
notice to
to Local
Local145
145
Neither
about the
press release
offered to
to meet
meet and
and confer
confer
about
the press
releaseor
or posting
posting of
of the
the rescission
rescission documents,
documents, or
or offered
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regarding the
the issue.
issue. No
No City
Cityemployee
employee actually
actually filled
filledout
outthe
theservice
servicecredit
creditrescission
rescission form
formoror
regarding
otherwise sought
sought to
to rescind
rescind the
the purchase
purchase of
service credits
credits as
as aa result
attorney's
otherwise
of service
result of
of the
the city
city attorney's
press release
release or
posting.
press
or website
website posting.
ALJ'S PROPOSED
PROPOSED DECISION
DECISION
ALJ'S
The ALJ
ALJ concluded
conciuded that
that the
the city
cityattorney
attorney had
had aa right
rightto
tocommunicate
communicatehis
hisviews
views
The
regarding the
the legality
legalityofofthe
theemployees'
employees'service
servicecredit
creditpurchases.
purchases. The
TheALJ
ALJdetermined,
determined,
regarding
however, the
the city
attorney went
went too
too far
far and
and bypassed
bypassed Local
with the
the
however,
city attorney
Local 145
145 by
by dealing
dealing directly
directly with
employees to
employees
to get
getthem
themtotorelinquish
relinquish aanegotiated
negotiatedbenefit.
benefit. The
The ALJ
ALJ rejected
rejected the
theCity's
City's claim
claim
that the
the city
city attorney's
attorney'sstatus
status as
as an
an elected
elected official
officialunder
underthe
theCity
CityCharter,
Charter,ororany
anyreferenced
referenced
that
general immunity
statutes, authorized
authorized the
the City
City to
to ignore
ignore bargaining
bargainingobligations
obligationsunder
underthe
the
general
immunity statutes,
MMBA.Finally,
Finally,
ALJ
found
that
"attempting
change"the
theservice
servicecredit
creditpurchase
purchase
MMBA.
thethe
ALJ
found
that
byby
"attempting
totochange"
policy, the
the City
City unilaterally
unilaterallychanged
changed the
the policy
policy without
without offering
offeringtotomeet
meet and
and confer
confer with
with
policy,
Local 145.
145.
Local
In its
itsexceptions
exceptionstotothe
theproposed
proposeddecision,
decision,the
theCity
Cityargues
arguesthat
thatthe
thepress
pressrelease
release and
and
In
website posting
posting were
were intended
intended to
to reach
reach all
City employees
employees for
for the
the purpose
purpose of
ofenforcing
enforcingthe
the
website
all City
MOU, and
and asking
asking for
for compliance
compliance with
with it.
it.The
TheCity
Cityfurther
furtherasserts
assertsthat
thatas
as an
an elected
elected official,
MOU,
official,
and chief
chief legal
legal advisor
advisor and
and attorney
attorney to
to the
the City,
City,the
the city
cityattorney
attorneyhas
has almost
almostunfettered
unfettered
and
authority to
to enforce
enforce the
the laws
laws of
the City
City of
ofSan
San Diego,
Diego, including
including the
the MOUs
MOU s with
withthe
therespective
respective
authority
of the
employee organizations.
organizations. Concomitantly,
Concomitantly,the
theCity
Cityargues
arguesthat
thatthe
the communication
communicationwas
was merely
merely
employee
an informational
informationaistatement
statement that
that expressed
expressed the
attorney's views
views and
and opinions
opinions for
forthe
the
an
the city
city attorney's
purpose
enabling informed
informed judgments
judgmentsby
byall
allCity
Cityemployees,
employees,and
andwas
wasthus
thusprotected
protected
purpose of
of enabling
employerspeech.
speech.
employer
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DISCUSSION
DISCUSSION
Bypassing the
Bypassing
the Union
Union
MMBAsection
section3505
3505provides
providesthat
thatlocal
localgovernment
governmentagencies
agencies"shall
"shallmeet
meetand
andconfer
conferinin
MMBA
good faith
regarding wages,
wages, hours,
good
faith regarding
hours, and
and other
other terms
terms and
andconditions
conditions of
of employment
employment with
with
representatives of
MMBA
representatives
of such
suchrecognized
recognizedemployee
employeeorganizations."
organizations."Additionally,
Additionally, MMBA
section 3503
3503 provides
provides that
that "recognized
"recognized employee
employee organizations
organizations shall
shall have
have the
the right
right to
to
section
represent their
members in
employment relations
relations with
withpublic
publicagencies."
agencies."
represent
their members
in their
their employment
An employer
employer may
may not
not communicate
communicate proposals
proposals to
An
to employees
employees before
before first
first submitting
submitting
them to
to the
the exclusive
exclusive representative,
representative, seek
employees, or
or invite
invitethem
themtoto
them
seek to
to bargain
bargain directly
directly with
with employees,
abandon their
representative to
the employer.
employer. (Trustees
(Trusteesofof
abandon
their representative
to achieve
achieve better
better terms
terms directly
directly from
from the
the California
CaliforniaState
State University
University (2006)
(2006) PERB
PERB Decision
Decision No.
No. 1871-H.)
1871-H.) An
Anemployer
employerviolates
violatesthe
the
the
duty to
to bargain
bargain in
in good
good faith
faithwhen
whenititbypasses
bypasses the
the exclusive
exclusiverepresentative
representativeto
tonegotiate
negotiatedirectly
directly
duty
withemployees
employees over
over matters
matters within
the scope
scope ofrepresentation.
Valley Unified
Unified
with
within the
of representation. (Walnut
(Walnut Valley
School District
District(1981)
(1981) PERB
PERB Decision
DecisionNo.
No. 160
160 (Walnut
(Walnut Valley).)
Valley).)
School
To establish
establish that
that an
an employer
employer has
has unlawfully
bypassed the
the exclusive
exclusive representative,
representative, aa
To
unlawfully bypassed
charging
must demonstrate
its employees:
employees: (1)
(1) to
to
charging party
party must
demonstrate that
thatthe
theemployer
employerdealt
dealtdirectly
directly with
with its
create
general application,
to obtain
obtain aa waiver
or modification
modificationofofexisting
existing
create aanew
newpolicy
policy of
of general
application, or
or (2)
(2) to
waiver or
applicable to
to those
those employees.
(Walnut Valley.)
Valley.) The
TheBoard
Boardagrees
agrees with
with the
the ALJ's
ALJ's
ppolicies
olicies applicable
employees. (Walnut
thatthe
thecity
cityattorney's
attorney'sactions
actionsininthis
thismatter
matterfall
fallwithin
withinthe
thesecond
secondtest,
test,thus
thusbypassing
bypassing
inding that
ffinding
Local 145
145 in
in derogation
derogation of
ofLocal
Local 145's
145 'sright
righttotorepresent
representbargaining
bargainingunit
unitemployees.
employees.
Local
The City
City contends
contends that
that the
the press
press release
release and
were merely
merely asking
asking for
for
The
and website
website posting
posting were
compliance
the MOU,
not asking
asking employees
employees to
City
compliance with
with the
MOU, not
to relinquish
relinquish aa negotiated
negotiatedright.
right. The City
asserts such
such action
the MOU,
MOU,which
which
asserts
action was
was necessary
necessarytoto bring
bring the
the purchases
purchasesinto
into compliance
compliance with
with the
required that
that the
the City's
City'sshare
share of
ofthe
the cost
cost of
ofthe
the additional
additionalservice
servicecredit
creditbe
beborne
borneby
bythe
the
required
7

employees. However,
However, the
the City
Cityfocuses
focuses on
on that
that part
part of
ofthe
the MOU
MOUthat
thatprovides
provides that
that the
the pricing
pricing
employees.
was to
to "make
"make the
the System
System whole,"
provision wholly
whollyoutside
outsideofofthe
thecontrol
controlofofthe
theemployees
employees
was
whole," aa provision
themselves.
To make
make the
"whole,"the
thecity
cityattorney
attorneysought
soughtthe
theemployees'
employees' complete
complete
themselves. To
the City
City "whole,"
6

rescission of
oftheir
their purchase
purchase of
ofservice
service credits."
credits. This
Thisaction
actiongoes
goesbeyond
beyondcorrecting
correctingthe
theprice
price
rescission
shortfaH and
and disregards
disregards the
the MOU
MOUlanguage
ianguagethat
thatexpressly
expresslyauthorizes
authorizesemployee
employeepurchases
purchasesofof
shortfall
service credit
creditatataaprice
priceset
setby
bythe
theretirement
retirementsystem.
system.
service
By
solicitingemployees
employeestotorescind
rescindtheir
theirpurchase
purchaseofofservice
servicecredits,
credits,made
madeininaccordance
accordance
By soliciting
withthe
the MOU,
MOU,the
theCity
Cityhas
hasgone
gone directly
directlytotothe
theemployees
employees to
to obtain
obtain their
their waiver
waiver of
ofaa benefit
benefit
with
negotiated
Local 145,
145, based
based on
on the
the City's
subsequent determination
determination that
that the
the credits
credits were
were
negotiated by
by Local
City's subsequent
underpriced to
to the
the detriment
detriment of
ofthe
the City.
City. Consequently,
Consequently,the
thecity
cityattorney's
attorney'sdirect
directrequest
requesttoto
underpriced
employees to
rescind service
service credit
credit purchases,
purchases, constituted
constituted bypass
bypass of
ofthe
the exclusive
exclusive
employees
to rescind

representative in
of the
the MMBA.
MMBA.
representative
in violation
violation of
The City's
City'sargument
argument that
that the
the ALJ
ALJfailed
failedtotoproperly
properlyrecognize
recognizeand
andapply
applyemployer
employer
The
speech protections
attorney's communications
communications isis unpersuasive.
unpersuasive. The
TheBoard
Boardhas
has held
held
speech
protections to
to the
the city
city attorney's
that an
an employer
employer has
has the
to "express
"express its
its views
views on
on employment
employment related
related matters
matters over
over which
which
that
the right
right to
has legitimate
legitimate concerns
concerns in
full and
and knowledgeable
knowledgeable debate"
debate" (Rio
(Rio Hondo
Hondo
itit has
in order
order to
to facilitate
facilitate full
Community College
College District
(1980) PERB
PERB Decision
Decision No.
No. 128
128 (Rio
(Rio Hondo).)
Hondo).) However,
However,
Community
District (1980)

employer
speech that
ofexisting
existing
employer speech
that goes
goes beyond
beyond mere
mereexpression
expressionof
of opinion
opinion or
or communication
communication of
facts,
but instead
instead advocates
advocates or
solicits aa course
course of
ofaction,
action, isis not
notsubject
subjecttotoemployer
employerspeech
speech
facts, but
or solicits
protections. (State
(State of
ofCalifornia
California(Department
(Department of
ofTransportation)
Transportation) (1996)
(1996) PERB
PERB Decision
Decision
protections.
No. 1176-S
1176-S (Ca/Trans).)
Furthermore, the
the Board
Board in
in Rio
Rio Hondo
Hondo specifically
specifically held
held that
that
No.
(CalTrans).) Furthermore,
6

Notably,the
theposted
postedinformational
informationalstatement
statementdoes
doesnot
notappear
appeartotodistinguish
distinguishbetween
between
Notably,
purchases
made
before
the
underpricing
was
adjusted
in
2003,
and
purchases
made
ostensibly
purchases made before the underpricing was adjusted in 2003, and purchases made ostensibly
at the
the appropriate
Rather, the
the posting
posting solicits
solicitsCity
Cityemployees
employees to
to rescind
rescind all
allservice
service
at
appropriate pricing.
pricing. Rather,
creditpurchases.
purchases.
credit
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protection isis afforded
affordedtotoemployer
employerspeech
speech"provided
"providedthe
thecommunication
communication
is not
used
a means
protection
is not
used
asas
a means
ofviolating
violatingthe
the Act."
Act."(Id.)
(Id.)Thus,
Thus,
Board
specifically
exemptsfrom
fromprotection
protectionspeech
speechthat
that
of
thethe
Board
specifically
exempts
is used
used as
labor practice,
practice, such
such as
as bypassing
bypassing the
the exclusive
exclusive
is
as aa means
meansto
to commit
commit an
an unfair
unfair labor
representative.
representative.
The
argues that
Labor Relations
Relations Board
Board (NLRB)
(NLRB)standards
standards
The City
City argues
that pursuant
pursuant to
to Nationai
National Labor
adopted by
by PERB,
PERB, the
the ALJ
ALJ should
should have
have examined
examined only
only whether
whether the
the city
cityattorney's
attorney's
adopted
7
communication
The City
City
communication contained
contained aa threat
threatof
of reprisal
reprisalor
orforce,
force,or
orpromise
promiseof
ofbenefit.
benefit.' The

attempted to
to substantiate
substantiate its
by comparing
comparing excerpts
excerpts from
from the
the city
cityattorney's
attorney'swebsite
website
attempted
its position
position by
posting
with excerpts
excerpts from
from PERB
PERB and
and NLRB
NLRB case
case law.
law. The
TheCity
Citycalls
callsattention
attentiontotothose
thoseparts
parts
posting with
ofthe
the website
website posting
posting that
that read,
you would
would like
liketotorescind
rescind this
this legally
legallyunauthorized
unauthorized
of
read, "If
"If you
purchase" and "[employees are encouraged to review [ the rescission form], obtain

7
Rio
Hondo,a case
a casearising
arisingunder
underthe
theEducational
EducationalEmployment
EmploymentRelations
Relations Act
Act
InIn
Rio
Hondo,
(EERA) (Gov.
(Gov.Code
Code§
3540etetseq.),
seq.), the
the Board
Boardconsidered
considered employer
employerspeech
speech provisions
provisionsininthe
the
(EERA)
$ 3540
National
Labor
Relations
Act
(NLRA)
(29
U.S.C.
§
151
et
seq.).
NLRA
section
158(c)states:
states:
National Labor Relations Act (NLRA) (29 U.S.C. $ 151 et seq.). NLRA section 158(c)

The expressing
expressing of
any views,
views, argument,
argument, or
or opinion,
opinion, or
orthe
the
The
of any
dissemination
thereof,
whether
in
written,
printed,
graphic,
dissemination thereof, whether in written, printed, graphic, oror
visual form,
form, shall
shall not
notconstitute
constitute or
orbe
be evidence
evidence of
of an
an unfair
unfair labor
labor
visual
practice
under
any
of
the
provisions
of
this
subchapter,
if
such
practice under any of the provisions of this subchapter, if such
expression contains
or force
force or
or promise
promise of
of
expression
contains no
no threat
threat of
of reprisal
reprisal or
benefit.
benefit.
The Board
Board held
held that
that although
although such
such aa provision
is absent
absent from
EERA, there
there is
is aa benefit
benefit
The
provision is
from EERA,
from facilitating
facilitatingthe
thefree
free flow
flowofofopinions
opinionsand
andviews.
views.Therefore,
Therefore,the
theBoard
Boarddetermined
determined that
that
from
certain
types
of
employer
speech
is
protected.
The
Board
set
forthaastandard
standardto
todetermine
determine
certain types of employer speech is protected. The Board set forth
when
employer
speech
loses
its
protection:
when employer speech loses its protection:
[A ]nemployer's
employer'sspeech
speechwhich
whichcontains
containsaa threat
threat of
ofreprisal
reprisalor
or
[A]n
force or
or promise
promise of
ofbenefit
benefit will
willbe
beperceived
perceivedas
asaameans
means of
of
force
violating
the
Act
and
will,
therefore,
lose
its
protection
and
violating the Act and will, therefore, lose its protection and
constitute strong
strong evidence
evidence of
is prohibited
prohibited by
by
constitute
of conduct
conduct which
which is
section
3543.5
of
the
EERA.
section 3543.5 of the EERA.
(Rio Hondo;
Hondo; fn.
fn. omitted.)
omitted.)
(Rio
9

8
professional advice
advice as
as needed
if ifdesired."
claims
professional
neededand
anddesired,
desired,execute
executethe
thedocument
document
desired." The
The City
City claims

these statements
statements are
fromemployer
employerstatements
statementsfound
foundacceptable
acceptableinincases
cases
these
are not
not distinguishable
distinguishable from
such as
as Ca/Trans,
Perkins Machine
Machine Company
Company (1963)
(1963) 141
141 NLRB
NLRB697
697(Perkins
(PerkinsMachine
MachineCo.),
Co.),
such
CalTrans, Perkins
and Rio
Rio Hondo.
Hondo. However,
However,the
theCity
Citymischaracterizes
mischaracterizes or
or overlooks
overlooks pertinent
pertinent findings
findings from
fromeach
each
and
ofthese
thesecases.
cases.
of
In
Ca/Trans, the
the employer
employer distributed
distributedaamemo
memo to
to all
allemployees
employees informing
informingthem
themthat
thatthe
the
In CalTrans,
parties
The memo
memo notified
notified employees
employees that
that
parties were
were engaged
engagedininnegotiations
negotiations for
for aa new
new contract.
contract. The
upon expiration
expiration of
ofthe
thecontract,
contract,agency
agency fee
fee payers
payers were
were no
no longer
longer subject
subject to
to fair
fairshare
share fee
fee
upon
deductions and
The
deductions
and union
union members
memberswere
werenot
notprohibited
prohibitedfrom
fromwithdrawing
withdrawing from
from the
the union.
union. The
memo also
also referenced
referenced procedures
notificationtotothe
the
memo
proceduresfor
forwithdrawing
withdrawing from
from the
the union,
union, including
including notification
union, and
and noted
noted that
that questions
questions about
about canceling
canceling union
union membership
membership should
should be
be directed
directed to
to the
the
union,
umon. The
TheBoard
Boardfound
foundthe
thememo
memoprotected
protectedemployer
employerspeech,
speech, stating:
stating:
union.
[W]here
employerspeech
speech accurately
accuratelydescribes
describesan
an event,
event,and
anddoes
does
[W]here employer
not
on
its
face
carry
the
threat
ofreprisal
reprisal or
or force,
force, or
or promise
promise of
of
not on its face carry the threat of
benefit, the
the Board
Board will
willnot
notfind
findthe
thespeech
speech unlawful.
unlawful.
benefit,

(Id., citing
citingChula
ChulaVista
VistaCity
CitySchool
SchoolDistrict
District(1990)
(1990)PERB
PERBDecision
DecisionNo.
No.834.)
834.)
(Id.,
The City
Cityininthe
theinstant
instantcase
caseargues
argues that
thatthe
the city
cityattorney's
attorney'spress
pressrelease
release and
and website
website
The
statements did
on their
face contain
contain aa threat
reprisal or
or force,
force, or
or promise
promise of
ofbenefit.
benefit.
statements
did not
not on
their face
threat of
of reprisal
Thus,
the explanation
explanation of
of procedures
procedures to
from the
the union
union inin
Thus, they
they are
are no
no different
different from
from the
to withdraw
withdraw from

Ca/Trans,
and the
should be
be entitled
to protection.
protection. However,
However,the
theCity
Citydisregards
disregardsthat
thatpart
part
CalTrans, and
the City
City should
entitled to
ofthe
the decision
decisionwhere
where the
the Board
Board states:
states:
of
8
TheCity
Cityalso
alsoargues
arguesthat
thatadmonishments
admonishments to
to obtain
obtain professional
professional advice
advice contained
contained inin
"The
both
the
informational
statement
and
the
request
form
establish
the
nature
of
the
documentsas
as
both the informational statement and the request form establish the nature of the documents
merely
informative.
This
argument
is wholly
wholly without
without merit.
merit. AAroutine
routinereferral
referraltotoconsult
consultwith
with
merely informative. This argument is
legal
or
tax
professionals
as
to
the
potential
tax
or
other
consequences
for
any
individual
legal or tax professionals as to the potential tax or other consequences for any individual
employee does
soliciting action
action by
by
employee
does not
not serve
servetotoabsolve
absolvethe
theCity
Cityfrom
fromresponsibility
responsibility for
for directly
directly soliciting
the employees.
employees.
the
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10

First, the
the memos
memos conveying
conveying information
information concerning
concerning the
the right
right to
to
First,
resign
from Union
Unionmembership
membershipsimply
simplycommunicate
communicatethat
thatthe
the
resign from
right
exists
and
do
not
advocate
a
course
of
action.
.
.
.
The
facts
right exists and do not advocate a course of action. . . . The facts
alleged
do
not
establish
that the
the CalTrans
CalTrans solicited
solicitedemployees
employees to
to
alleged do not establish that
withdraw
from
membership,
only
that
the
CalTrans
informed
withdraw from membership, only that the CalTrans informed
employees of
of their
their right
righttotodo
doso.
so.
employees
(Id.;emphasis
emphasis added.)
added.)
(Id.;

Similarly,ininPerkins
PerkinsMachine
MachineCo.,
Co.,the
theemployer
employersent
sentaaletter
lettertotoeach
eachemployee
employee
Similarly,
informingthem
themofofthe
the15-day
15-daywindow
windowset
setforth
forthininthe
thecollective
collectivebargaining
bargainingagreement,
agreement, during
during
informing
whichthey
theyhad
had the
the right
rightto
towithdraw
withdrawfrom
fromthe
theunion,
union,along
alongwith
withthe
theprocedures
procedures for
for
which
withdrawal. The
Theemployer
employerletter
letterininPerkins
PerkinsMachine
MachineCo.
Co.also
alsoadvised
advisedthat:
that:
withdrawal.
Whether
you resign
resign from
from the
the union,
union, or
orwhether
whetheryou
youremain
remainaa
Whether you
member
will
not
make
any
difference
in
your
wages,
benefits,
member will not make any difference in your wages, benefits,
positionorortreatment
treatmentby
bythe
theCompany.
Company.
position

..
We repeat
repeat -Company is
is not
not urging
urging you
you either
eitherto
toremain
remainaa
We
-- the
the Company
member
of
the
union
or
to
resign
from
the
union.
As
far
asthe
the
member of the union or to resign from the union. As far as
Company
is
concerned,
that
is
a
matter
for each
each man
decide for
Company is concerned, that is a matter for
man to
to decide
for

himselfwithout
withoutpressure
pressure from
fromeither
eitherthe
the Company
Company or
or the
the union.
union.
himself
(Perkins Machine
Machine Co.
Co. at
at p.
p. 699.)
699.)
(Perkins

Here, the
the NLRB
also held
heldthe
the letter
letterwas
wasacceptable,
acceptable, noting
notingthat
thatititwas
wasfree
freefrom
fromany
any
Here,
NLRB also
threat of
The NLRB
NLRB found
found ititsignificant
significantthat
thatthe
theletter
letter"ends
"ends
threat
of reprisal
reprisal or
or promise
promise of
of benefit.
benefit. The
withaa clear
clear statement
statement of
of Respondent's
Respondent's neutral
(Id.atatp.p.700)
700)
with
neutral position."
position." (Id.
Finally,the
the City
Cityrelies
relies heavily
heavily on
on selective
selective findings
Rio Hondo.
The City cites
cites
Finally,
findings in
in Rio
Hondo. The
language from
from aa memorandum
memorandum written
writtenby
bythe
the community
communitycollege
collegesuperintendent
superintendenttotothe
the
language
ofthe
the faculty
facultyassociation,
association,and
andargues
argues that
that the
the superintendent
superintendent directly
asked union
union
ppresident
resident of
directly asked
members to
a manner
the city
attorney's plea
plea to
to City
City
members
to take
take action
action in
in a
manner indistinguishable
indistinguishable from
from the
city attorney's
employees. The
The City
Cityagain
againfocuses
focuses on
on the
the Board's
Board's finding
findingthat
thatthe
thesuperintendent's
superintendent'smemos
memos
employees.
contained
(Rio Hondo.)
Hondo.) However,
However,the
the
contained no
no "threat
"threat of
of reprisal
reprisal or
or force
force or
or promise
promiseof
ofbenefit."
benefit." (Rio
crux of
ofthe
the Board's
Board'sanalysis
analysisininRio
RioHondo,
Hondo,that
thatprotected
protectedemployer
employercommunications
communicationsare
are
crux
11
11

founded upon
upon the
The
founded
the expression
expression of
of views,
views, arguments,
arguments,or
oropinions,
opinions,but
butare
arenot
notunlimited.
unlimited. The
Board stated,
stated, "the
"the employer's
employer's right
righttotofreely
freelyexpress
expressits
itsviews,
vievvs,arguments
argumentsor
oropinions
opinionsisis
Board

impliedlyestablished
establishedby
bythe
the fact
factthat
thatthe
the employer
employer isis prohibited
prohibitedonly
onlyfrom
fromengaging
engaginginin
impliedly
negotiations with
withpersons
persons or
or groups
groups other
other than
than the
(Id.; emphasis
emphasis in
in
negotiations
the exclusive
exclusive representative."
representative." (Id.;
original.)Further,
Further,asasstated
statedpreviously
previouslyherein,
herein,protected
protectedspeech
speech isis afforded
affordedthe
the employer
employer
original.)
"provided
the communication
ofof
violating
Moreover,
"provided the
communication is
is not
not used
usedas
asaameans
means
violatingthe
theAct."
Act."(Id.)
(Id.) Moreover,
the Board
Board in
in Rio
Rio Hondo,
Hondo, specifically
specificallynoted
noted that
that the
the union
union in
inthat
that matter
matter did
did not
nothave
have exclusive
exclusive
the
representative status,
status, so
engage in
held that
that
representative
so the
the Board
Board did
did not
not engage
in aa bypass
bypassanalysis.
analysis. The
The Board
Board held
"an
employer's direct
directcommunication
communicationwith
withemployees
employeesmay
mayescape
escape protection
protectionififititevidences
evidencesan
an
"an employer's
employer's attempt
attempt to
to bypass
bypass the
(Id.)
employer's
the exclusive
exclusive representative."
representative." (Id.)
Ineach
each of
ofthe
the above
above cases,
cases, the
communicated existing
existing facts,
facts, views,
views,
In
the employer
employer communicated
arguments, or
but did
did not
not advocate
advocate aa course
ofthe
the
arguments,
or opinions,
opinions, but
course of
of action
action in
in circumvention
circumvention of
exclusive representative,
representative, or
or otherwise
otherwise use
use the
commit an
an unfair
unfair labor
labor
exclusive
the communication
communication to
to commit
practice.
practice.
The same
same cannot
hearing, City
City
The
cannot be
besaid
saidabout
aboutthe
thecity
cityattorney's
attorney's actions
actions in
in this
this case.
case. At
At hearing,
Attorney Aguirre
Aguirre testified
testified that:
that:
Attorney
SDCERS had
had taken
taken the
the position
position that
that they
they were
were not
notgoing
goingtoto
SDCERS
permit
anyone
to
unwind
the
transactions,
that
it
couldn't
bedone
done
permit anyone to unwind the transactions, that it couldn't be
for
tax
reasons.
We
retained
counsel
to
help
for tax reasons. We retained counsel to help us
us figure
figure out
out how
how itit
could
be
done,
and
we
wanted
and
were
hoping
that
people
would
could be done, and we wanted and were hoping that people would
be
motivated
by
a
sense
of
duty
to
the
city
to
come
forward
and
be motivated by a sense of duty to the city to come forward and
take advantage
advantage of
this and,
and, ....
unwind the
the transactions.
transactions.
take
of this
. . actually
actually unwind
The press
press release
release and
themselves stated
stated that
that "SDCERS
"SDCERSmay
maydeny
deny
The
and website
website posting
posting themselves
requests for
refunds" for
forsome
sometypes
types of
oftransactions,
transactions, and
and assured
assured employees
employees that
City
requests
for refunds"
that "the
"the City
Attorney's Office
Officeisisattempting
attemptingtotoresolve
resolve these
these matters
Therefore,
Attorney's
matters with
with SDCERS
SDCERS officials."
officials." Therefore,
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the City
was not
not merely
merely reporting
reporting existing
existing procedures
procedures but
was actively
involved in
in developing
developing
the
City was
but was
actively involved
the procedures
procedures and
and was
was taking
specificaction
actiontotoadvocate
advocatefor
fortheir
theirsuccess.
success.
the
taking specific
Furthermore, when
when asked
asked at
at hearing
hearing about
about the
the intent
intent and
and purpose
purpose of
ofthe
the rescission
rescission
Furthermore,
agreement the
attorney testified:
testified:
agreement
the city
city attorney
Q
So the
the intent
intent of
ofthis
this agreement,
agreement, as
as drafted
So
drafted by
by your
your office,
office,
if
it
were
agreed
to
by
the
employee,
was
that
the
employee
if it were agreed to by the employee, was that the employee
would rescind
rescind his
his purchase,
purchase, give
give us
us up
up [sic]
[sic] years
years of
ofcredit,
credit,and
and
would
get
his
money
back
without
interest,
correct?
get his money back without interest, correct?
A
A

That's what
what this,
this, in
in this
this form,
form, yes.
yes.
That's

Therefore, by
by his
his own
own statements,
statements, the
attorney was
was soliciting
solicitingemployees
employees to
to entirely
entirely
Therefore,
the city
city attorney
rescind aa benefit
for the
the good
good of
of the
the City's
City'sfinances,
finances, not
not merely
merely describing
describing existing
existingrescission
rescission
rescind
benefit for
procedures. Giving
Givingthe
the document
document the
the title
title "Informational
"InformationalStatement...,"
Statement ... ,"does
doesnot
notchange
change the
the
procedures.
nature of
ofthe
the communication.
communication.The
Thepress
pressrelease
release and
and website
website posting
postingwere
were not
notmerely
merely
nature
informational,but
butwere
weredesigned
designed to
to solicit
solicitemployees
employeesto
totake
takeaction
actiontotogive
giveup
upaanegotiated
negotiated
informational,
benefit, and
and are
are therefore
therefore not
not subject
subject to
to employer
employerspeech
speech protections."
protections. 9
benefit,
The City's
City's argument
argument that
that the
the ALJ
ALJ "failed
"failedtotogive
givedue
due weight
weightto
tothe
the San
San Diego
Diego City
City
The
Charter provisions
provisions regarding
regarding the
the city
city attorney's
attorney's obligation
obligationtotoenforce
enforcethe
thelaws
lawsofofthe
theCity
Cityand
and
Charter
provide legal
legal advice
advice to
to the
the City"
similarlyunpersuasive.
unpersuasive. The
TheCity
Citycites
citesSection
Section40
40ofofthe
the
provide
City" isis similarly
San Diego
City Charter,
Charter, that
that states
states the
attorney is
is the
the "chief
"chieflegal
legaladvisor
advisorof,
of,and
andattorney
attorney
San
Diego City
the city
city attorney
for the
the City
Cityand
and all
allDepartments
Departments and
and offices
offices thereof
thereof in
in matters
matters relating
officialpowers
powers
for
relating to their official
and duties,"
duties," as
as mandating
mandating both
both the
the duty
duty and
and the
the obligation
obligation of
ofthe
the city
cityattorney
attorneytotoenforce
enforcethe
the
and

thecity
cityattorney's
attorney'ssolicitation
solicitationtotorescind
rescindemployee
employeepurchases
purchaseswas
was
FFurthermore,
urthermore, the
accompanied
by
statements
that
the
purchases
were
illegal
accompanied by statements that the purchases were illegaland
andviolated
violatedthe
theCity
CityCharter.
Charter. It
was also
also widely
widely known
known that
that the
the city
cityattorney
attorneywas
was pursuing
pursuing litigation
litigationtotoreverse
reversethe
the effect
effectofofthe
the
was
employees'
underpayment
for
service
credits.
Such
statements
could
create
undue
concernon
on
employees' underpayment for service credits. Such statements could create undue concern
the part
part of
ofemployees
employees over
over the
the consequences
consequences of
to rescind
rescind their
theirservice
servicecredit
creditpurchases.
purchases.
the
of failing
failing to
(Rio Hondo.)
Hondo.)
(Rio
13
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laws of
ofthe
the City,
City, including
includingMOUs
MO Usbetween
betweenthe
theCity
Cityand
andits
itsunions.
unions.Based
Basedon
onthis
thisargument,
argument,
laws
the City
City claims
claimsthe
the city
cityattorney
attorneyhad
hadaa duty
dutytotoseek
seekrescission
rescission of
ofthe
the employees'
employees' service
service credit
credit
the
purchases in
However, the
the City
City fails
fails to
to explain
explainoror
purchases
in order
ordertotoprotect
protectthe
theCity
Cityin
in aafinancial
financial crisis.
crisis. However,
provideany
anyevidence
evidence as
as to
to how
how such
such duties
duties authorize
authorize the
the city
cityattorney
attorneytotodisregard
disregardthe
thestate
state
provide
r-ollect1'vp bargaining
baro-a1n1nostatute •"lOAsActhe
thPALJ
A LJconcluded,
conclurl,,rl the
th ..city
r-1tyattorney
attr.rnPUcould
""" ldhave
haveexercised
evorr-;s,,rl
.1.5 statute.
collective
V
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his duty
duty on
on behalf
behalf of
ofthe
the City
Cityby
byseeking
seeking modification
modificationororrescission
rescissionofofthe
thebenefit
benefitthrough
through
his
negotiations with
withLocal
Local145.
145.
negotiations
Unilateral
Change
Unilateral Change
Indetermining
determiningwhether
whether aa party
party has
has committed
a unilateral
violation
In
committed a
unilateral change
changein
in policy
policy in
in violation
ofMMBA
MMBAsection
section3505
3505and
andPERB
PERBRegulation
Regulation32603(c),
32603(c),PERB
PERButilizes
utilizeseither
eitherthe
the"per
"perse"
se"oror
of
"totalityofofthe
theconduct"
conduct"test,
test,depending
depending on
on the
the specific
specific conduct
conduct involved
involvedand
andthe
the effect
effectof
ofsuch
such
"totality
conduct on
on the
the negotiating
( 1980) PERB
PERB Decision
Decision
conduct
negotiating process.
process. (Stockton
(Stockton Unified
Unified School
School District
District (1980)
No. 143.)
143.) Unilateral
Unilateralchanges
changesare
are considered
considered "per
"per se"
se" violations
violations ififcertain
certaincriteria
criteriaare
aremet.
met.
No.
Those
are: (1)
(1) the
the employer
employerbreached
breached or
or altered
altered the
the parties'
parties' written
writtenagreement
agreement or
or its
its
Those criteria
criteria are:
own established
established past
past practice;
practice; (2)
(2) such
such action
action was
was taken
givingthe
the other
otherparty
partynotice
notice
own
taken without
without giving
or
an opportunity
opportunityto
tobargain
bargainover
overthe
thechange;
change;(3)
(3)the
thechange
changewas
was not
notmerely
merelyan
anisolated
isolatedbreach
breach
or an
ofthe
the contract,
contract, but
but amounts
amounts to
to aa change
change in
(i.e., itithas
has aa generalized
generalized effect
effect or
or continuing
continuing
of
in policy
policy (i.e.,
TheCity
Cityattempts
attemptstotoliken
likenthe
thecity
cityattorney's
attorney'spowers
powerstotothat
thatofofthe
theState
State Attorney
Attorney
"The
General.
The
City
notes
the
California
Constitution,
article
V,
section
13,
grants
power
to the
the
General. The City notes the California Constitution, article V, section 13, grants power to
AttorneyGeneral
General as
as the
the "chief
law officer
officerofofthe
theState,"
State,"subject
subject to
to the
the "powers
"powers and
and duties
duties of
of
Attorney
"chief law
the Governor."
Governor." The
TheCity
Cityargues,
argues,"[WJhereas
"[W]hereasthe
theConstitution
Constitutionand
andGovernment
GovernmentCode
Code limit
limitthe
the
the
Attorney
General's
powers somewhat,
somewhat, the
the Charter
Charter provides
to the
the City
City
Attorney General's powers
provides almost
almost no
no limit
limit to
attorney's
legal
powers."
In
this
assertion,
the
City
disregards
case
law
that
holds
"thatgeneral
general
attorney's legal powers." In this assertion, the City disregards case law that holds "that
law
prevails
over
local
enactments
ofaa chartered
chartered city,
city, even
even in
in regard
regard to
to matters
matters which
which would
would
law prevails over local enactments of
otherwise be
be deemed
deemed to
municipalaffairs,
affairs,where
wherethe
thesubject
subjectmatter
matterofofthe
thegeneral
general
otherwise
to be
be strictly
strictly municipal
law is
is of
ofstatewide
statewide concern."
concern." (Professional
(ProfessionalFire
FireFighters,
Fighters,Inc.
Inc.v.v.City
Cityofof
LosAngeles
Angeles(1963)
(1963)
law
Los
60
Cal.2d
276,
292
[
creation
of
uniform
fair
labor
practices
throughout
the
state
is
a
matter
of
60 Cal.2d 276, 292 [creation of uniform fair labor practices throughout the state is a matter of
state
concern
and
general
law
is
paramount];
see
also,
San
Francisco
Unified
School
District
state concern and general law is paramount]; see also, San Francisco Unified School District
(2008) PERB
PERB Decision
DecisionNo.
No.1948
1948and
andcases
cases cited
cited therein.)
therein.)
(2008)
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impact upon
upon bargaining
bargaining unit
unitmembers'
members' terms
terms and
and conditions
conditions of
ofemployment);
employment);and
and(4)
(4)the
the
impact
11 th1n +1,p. S"0pe of r"'pr"'S"'nta+;An {Fevnon
" h "'ngp. 1·n pol 1cy concern"
Fz"re
f
t,E,
change
in policy concerns a me>ttP.r
matter "within
the scope of representation. (Vernon
Fire Finhtev"
Fighters
V..l..&.U,.J...l.

'It,,.'

.I-

..l.

.1.

..L~

Cl
!,,,I,

.l.l.

U-L\."1.L

¥Y J.

..l. .L.lJ.

L.lJ.\,,,,

'-'

\,,'

V

V.l.

L

1.,.LVJ.J.,

\

j /

t,

t,

ID

v. City
City of
ofVernon
Vernon (1980)
(1980) 107
107 Cal.App.3d
Cal.App.3d 802;
802; Walnut
Walnut Valley,
Valley, supra,
supra, PERB
PERB Decision
DecisionNo.
No.160;
160;
v.
San Joaquin
County Employees
Employees Association
v. City
City of
ofStockton
Stockton (1984)
(1984) 161
161 Cal.App.3d
Cal.App.3d813;
813;
San
Joaquin County
Association v.
Grant
Joint Union
Union High
High School
School District
District(1982)
(1982) PERB
PERB Decision
Decision No.
No. 196.)
196.)
Grant Joint
The
found that
that "by
"byattempting
attemptingtotochange
change the
the policy
policyconcerning
concerningpurchase
purchase of
ofsuch
such
The ALJ
ALJ found
service credits
credits without
offering to
to meet
meet and
and confer
145," the
violated MMBA
MMBA
service
without offering
confer with
with Local
Local 145,"
the City
City violated
section 3505.
3505. However,
However,ininorder
ordertotoestablish
establishaaprima
primafacie
faciecase,
case, the
the charging
charging party
partymust
mustfirst
first
section
demonstrate
An "attempt"
"attempt"toto
demonstrate that
that the
the employer
employer changed
changed aawritten
written agreement
agreement or
or past
pastpractice.
practice. An
change
Althoughthe
thecity
cityattorney
attorneysolicited
solicitedemployees
employeestotorescind
rescindservice
service
changeaapolicy
policy is
is insufficient.
insufficient. Although
credit purchases,
purchases, the
altered or
or terminated
terminated the
the
credit
the record
record does
doesnot
not contain
contain evidence
evidence the
theCity
City actually
actually altered
policy
withrespect
respect to
to the
the purchase
purchase of
ofservice
service credits.
credits. InInfact,
fact,the
theSDCERS
SDCERStrustees
trusteesadjusted
adjustedthe
the
policy with
cost
continues and
and is
is now
now revenue
revenue neutral
neutral
cost to
to purchase
purchase service
service credits,
credits, suggesting
suggesting that
that the
the benefit
benefit continues
to
the City.
Therefore, the
the ALJ's
ALJ'sfinding
findingthat
thatthe
the City
Citycommitted
committedaa unilateral
unilateral change
change violation
is
to the
City. Therefore,
violation is
reversed.
reversed.
Request for
for Judicial
Judicial Notice
Notice
Request
The City
City asks
asks the
the Board
Board to
to take
take judicial
notice of
ofthe
the San
San Diego
Diego City
CityCharter,
Charter,San
San Diego
Diego
The
judicial notice
MunicipalCode,
Code,section
section24132,
24132,and
and San
San Diego
Diego Ordinance
Ordinance O-18383,
0-18383, section
section 24.1312.
24.1312. These
These
Municipal
three documents
documents were
exceptions. 11
three
were submitted
submittedfor
for the
thefirst
first time
time with
with the
the City's
City's exceptions."
CaliforniaEvidence
Evidence Code
Code section
section 451(a),
451(a), provides
provides that
that "Judicial
"Judicialnotice
noticeshall
shallbe
betaken
taken
California
of ....
[the] decisional,
decisional, constitutional,
constitutional, and
and public
public statutory
statutory law
lawofofthis
thisstate
state ....
and the
the provisions
provisions
of
. . [the]
. . and

Article
section
City
Charter
was
admittedinto
intoevidence
evidenceatatthe
thehearing
hearing
"Article
V, V,
section
4040
of of
thethe
City
Charter
was
admitted
and
was
considered
by
the
ALJ.
and was considered by the ALJ.
15
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ofany
any charter
charter described
described in
Section 3,
XI of
ofthe
the California
CaliforniaConstitution."12
Constitution."
of
in Section
3, 4,
4, or
or 55 of
of Article
Article XI

(Emphasis added.)
added.) City
Citycharters
chartersare
are considered
considered to
to "have
"have all
all the
the dignity
dignityofofordinary
ordinarystatutes,"
statutes,"and
and
(Emphasis
are subject
notice although
although not
not set
set forth
in the
the record.
record. (Tilden
(Tildenv.v. Blood
Blood(1936)
(1936)14
14
are
subject to
to judicial
judicial notice
forth in
Cal.App.2d 407,
407,413;
Clark v.
v. Patterson
Patterson (1977)
(1977) 68
68 Cal.App.3d
329.) Therefore,
Therefore,we
wegrant
grantthe
the
Cal.App.2d
413; Clark
Cal.App.3d 329.)
request to
to take
take judicial
noticeofofthe
theCity
CityCharter.
Charter.
request
judicial notice
However, as
as discussed
discussed herein,
to demonstrate
demonstrate how
the City
City
However,
herein, the
the City
City fails
fails to
how the
the provisions
provisions in
in the
Charter defining
defining the
the city
city attorney
attorney as
as the
the chieflegal
advisor to
gives him
him the
the authority
authorityto
to
Charter
chief legal advisor
to the
the City,
City, gives
bypass the
representative and
solicitthe
theemployees
employees to
to rescind
rescind benefits
benefits
bypass
the exclusive
exclusive representative
and directly
directly solicit
obtained
negotiated by
by Local
Local145.
145.
obtained pursuant
pursuant to
to the
the MOU
MOU negotiated
CaliforniaEvidence
Evidence Code
Code section
section 452(b)
452(b) provides
provides that,
that, "Judicial
"Judicialnotice
noticemay
maybe
betaken
taken
California
of....
[r]egulationsand
andlegislative
legislativeenactments
enactmentsissued
issued by
by or
or under
under the
the authority
authority of
ofthe
the United
United
of
. . [regulations
States
the United
States." (Emphasis
(Emphasis added.)
added.) As
As such,
such, the
the granting
granting of
of
States or
or any
anypublic
public entity
entity in
in the
United States."
judicialnotice
noticeby
byPERB
PERBisisdiscretionary.
discretionary. Municipal
Municipalcodes
codesand
andcity
cityordinances
ordinances fall
fallunder
underthis
this
judicial
statute.
statute.
Both the
the Municipal
MunicipalCode
Code and
and the
the City
CityOrdinance
Ordinance were
were readily
readily available
available prior
prior to
to the
the filing
filing
Both
of the
the charge,
charge, and
to offer
offerany
any evidence
evidence of
ofgood
good cause
cause for
failure to
to obtain
obtainand
and
of
and the
the City
City failed
failed to
for failure
providethis
thisevidence
evidence at
at the
the hearing
hearing for
for the
the ALJ
ALJtotoconsider.
consider.Therefore,
Therefore,the
theBoard
Boarddenies
deniesthe
the
provide
City'srequest
request for
for judicial
judicialnotice
noticeofofthe
theCity
CityMunicipal
MunicipalCode
Codeand
andOrdinance.
Ordinance.
City's
Remedy
Remedy
Pursuant to
Code section
under Section
Section 3541.3(i),
3541.3(i), isis
Pursuant
to Governn1ent
Government Code
section 3509(a),
3509(a), PERB,
PERB, under
empowered to:
to:
empowered

12
Section 3,
XI of
ofthe
the California
CaliforniaConstitution
Constitutionprovides
provides that,
that, "For
"For its
its own
own
12Section
3, Article
Article XI
government,
a
county
or
city
may
adopt
a
charter
by
majority
vote
of
its
electors. ....
government, a county or city may adopt a charter by majority vote of its electors
. . ." "
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[T]ake any
any action
action and
and make
make any
in respect
respect of
[TJake
any determinations
determinations in
of
these
charges
or
alleged
violations
as
the
board
deems
necessary
these charges or alleged violations as the board deems necessary
to effectuate
effectuate the
the policies
policies of
ofthis
thischapter.
chapter.
to
The
ordered the
the City
City to
to remove
remove the
the informational
informationalstatement
statement and
and request
request for
for
The ALJ
ALJ ordered
rescission agreement
agreement from
the city
city attorney's
attorney's website.
website. However,
However,the
theBoard
Boardagrees
agreeswith
withthe
the
rescission
from the
Citythat
thatthis
thisremedy
remedyisisoverbroad,
overbroad, as
as the
the issue
issue before
before the
pertains only
only to
to
City
the Board
Board at
at this
this time
time pertains
claims by
by Local
Local145.
145. Therefore,
Therefore,the
theBoard
Boardfinds
findsan
anappropriate
appropriateremedy
remedyisistotoorder
orderthe
theCity
Citytoto
claims
include
with any
any posting
posting on
on the
the city
city attorney's
attorney's website
website regarding
regarding rescission
rescission of
ofretirement
include with
retirement
service credit
credit purchases,
purchases, aa prominent
prominent notation
notationthat
thatthe
theprocedure
proceduredoes
does not
not apply
applytotoemployees
employees
service
represented by
by Local
Local145.
145.
represented
ORDER
ORDER
Based on
findin2:s
offact
factand
and conclusions
conclusions of
oflaw
lawand
andthe
the entire
entirerecord
recordinin
....,
'-' findings
...., of
Based
on the
the foreirnimr
foregoing
this matter,
matter, it
is found
found that
violated
this
it is
that the
the City
City of
of San
San Diego
Diego(Office
(Office of
of the
the City
City Attorney)
Attorney) (City)
(City) violated
the Meyers-Milias-Brown
Meyers-Milias-BrownAct
Act(MMBA)
(MMBA)
when
it bypassedthe
theSan
SanDiego
DiegoFirefighters,
Firefighters,
the
when
it bypassed
Local 145,
145, I.A.F.F.
I.A.F.F.(Local
(Local145),
145),by
bysoliciting
solicitingemployees
employeestotorescind
rescindaabenefit,
benefit,the
the purchase
purchase of
of
Local
retirement service
service credit,
credit, negotiated
negotiated by
145. All
Allother
otherallegations
allegationsare
are DISMISSED.
DISMISSED.
retirement
by Local
Local 145.
Pursuant to
Government Code
Code section
is hereby
hereby ORDERED
that the
the City
Cityand
and
Pursuant
to Government
section 3509,
3509, itit is
ORDERED that
itsrepresentatives
representatives shall:
shall:
its
A.
A.

CEASE AND
AND DESIST
DESIST FROM:
FROM:
CEASE
11..

Bypassing Local
Local 145
145 by
by directly
directlysoliciting
solicitingbargaining
bargainingunit
unitemployees
employeestoto
Bypassing

rescind retirement
retirement service
service credit
creditpurchases.
purchases.
rescind
2.
2.

Interferingwith
withemployee
employee rights
rights by
by directly
directly soliciting
solicitingbargaining
bargaining unit
unit
Interfering

employees to
to rescind
rescind retirement
retirementservice
servicecredit
creditpurchases.
purchases.
employees
33..

Interferingwith
withLocal
Local145's
145'sright
righttotorepresent
representemployees
employees by
by directly
directly
Interfering

solicitingbargaining
bargainingunit
unitemployees
employeestotorescind
rescindretirement
retirementservice
servicecredit
creditpurchases.
purchases.
soliciting
17
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B.
B.

TAKE THE
THE FOLLOWING
FOLLOWING AFFIRMATIVE
AFFIRMATIVEACTIONS
ACTIONSDESIGNED
DESIGNEDTO
TO
TAKE
POLICIES OF
EFFECTUATE THE POLICIES
OF THE
THE MMBA:
MMBA:
11..

Notifyany
anybargaining
bargainingunit
unitemployee
employeerepresented
represented by
by Local
Local145
145 who
who
Notify

submittedaa Request
Request to
to Rescind
Rescind Purchase
Purchase of
ofProspective
Prospective Service
Service Credit
CreditAgreement,
Agreement,that
thatthey
they
submitted
may withdraw
withdrawthe
therescission
rescissionand
andhave
have their
theirretirement
retirementservice
servicecredits
creditsrestored.
restored.
may
2.
2.

Include with
withany
anyposting
postingon
onthe
the city
cityattorney's
attorney'swebsite,
website,regarding
regarding
Include

rescission of
ofretirement
retirementservice
servicecredit
creditpurchases,
purchases, aa prominent
prominentnotation
notationthat
thatthe
theprocedure
proceduredoes
does
rescission
not apply
apply to
to bargaining
bargainingunit
unitemployees
employeesrepresented
represented by
by Local
Local 145.
145.
not
3.
3.

Within10
10workdays
workdaysof
ofthe
theservice
service of
ofaa final
finaldecision
decisionininthis
thismatter,
matter,post
post
Within

at all
all work
worklocations
locationswhere
where notices
notices to
to employees
employees in
in the
the City
City customarily
customarilyare
are posted,
posted, copies
copies of
of
at
the Notice
Notice attached
attached hereto
hereto as
as an
TheNotice
Noticemust
mustbe
besigned
signedby
byan
anauthorized
authorizedagent
agent
the
an Appendix.
Appendix. The
of the
the City,
City, indicating
indicating that
that itit will
willcomply
complywith
withthe
theterms
terms of
ofthis
thisOrder.
Order. Such
Suchposting
posting shall
shall be
be
of
maintainedfor
foraaperiod
periodofof3030consecutive
consecutiveworkdays.
workdays.Reasonable
Reasonablesteps
stepsshall
shallbebetaken
takentotoensure
ensure
maintained
that the
the Notice
Notice isis not
notreduced
reduced in
in size,
size, altered,
altered, defaced
defaced or
covered with
any other
other material.
material.
that
or covered
with any
44..

Written notification
notificationofofthe
theactions
actions taken
taken to
to comply
comply with
withthis
this Order
Ordershall
shall
Written

be made
made to
the Public
EmploymentRelations
RelationsBoard
Boardororthe
theGeneral
General
be
to the
the General
General Counsel
Counsel of
of the
Public Employment
Counsel's
The City
City shall
shall provide
provide reports,
reports, in
in writing,
writing,as
asdirected
directedby
bythe
the General
General
Counsel's designee.
designee. The
Counsel
reports regarding
regarding compliance
compliance with
with this
this Order
Order shall
shall be
be
Counsel or
or his/her
his/her designee.
designee. All
All reports
concurrently served
served on
on Local
Local145.
145.
concurrently

Member Mckeag
McKeag joined
joined in
in this
this Decision.
Decision.
Member
ActingChair
ChairDowdin
DowdinCalvillo's
Calvillo'concurrence
s concurrence
anddissent
dissentbegins
beginsononpage
page19.
19.
Acting
and

18
18

the
concurininthe
dissenting: I Iconcur
anddissenting:
concurringand
Chair,concurring
ActingChair,
CALVILLO,Acting
DOWD IN CALVILLO,
DOWDIN
did not
(City) did
Attorney) (City)
City Attorney)
the City
of the
(Office of
Diego (Office
San Diego
ofSan
City of
the City
that the
conclusionthat
majority'sconclusion
majority's
not
Meyers-Milias-Brown
the Meyers-Milias-Brown
ofthe
3505 of
section 3505
ofsection
violation of
change in
unilateral change
an unlawful
make an
make
unlawful unilateral
in violation
on
postedon
whenititposted
32603(c)when
Regulation32603(c)
(PERB)Regulation
Board(PERB)
RelationsBoard
EmploymentRelations
Public Employment
and Public
Actand
Act
retirement
purchases of
certain purchases
ofcertain
rescission of
regarding rescission
statement regarding
informationalstatement
an informational
website an
its website
its
of retirement
rescission.
sucha arescission.
initiatesuch
usetotoinitiate
coulduse
employeecould
Cityemployee
formaaCity
withaaform
alongwith
creditalong
service credit
service
website
thewebsite
thatthe
conclusionthat
majority'sconclusion
the majority's
with the
disagree with
reasons, IIdisagree
followingreasons,
the following
for the
However, for
However,
145).
(Local145).
I.A.F.F.(Local
145,I.A.F.F.
Local145,
Firefighters, Local
Diego Firefighters,
San Diego
ofSan
bypass of
constitutedaa bypass
postings constituted
postings
employeestoto
solicitingemployees
directlysoliciting
by directly
union by
the union
bypassed the
Citybypassed
the City
thatthe
allegedthat
145alleged
Local145
Local
City
the City
between the
MOUbetween
the MOU
ofthe
23(6)(8) of
purchases ofretirement
rescind purchases
rescind
of retirement service
servicecredit.
credit. Article
Article 23(6)(B)
part:
relevantpart:
stated,ininrelevant
violationstated,
allegedviolation
thealleged
timeofofthe
thetime
effectatatthe
145 inineffect
Local145
and Local
and
established
provisionisisestablished
creditprovision
service credit
ofservice
purchase of
five-yearpurchase
A five-year
A
may
Member may
the
provision,
this
Under
1997.
1,
January
effective
effective January 1, 1997. Under this provision, the Member
both
payingboth
bypaying
creditby
servicecredit
ofservice
years of
five years
to five
up to
purchase up
purchase
manner
and
amount
an
in
contributions
employer
and
employee
employee and employer contributions in an amount and manner
System
RetirementSystem
EmployeesRetirement
CityEmployees
Diego City
San Diego
the San
by the
determined by
determined
time.
such
for
whole
System
the
make
to
Board
Board to make the System whole for such time.
began:
websitebegan:
City'swebsite
the City's
onthe
posted on
statementposted
informationalstatement
The informational
The
purchase
thepurchase
thatthe
concludedthat
hasconcluded
Attorneyhas
CityAttorney
theCity
know,the
you know,
As you
As
City
Diego
San
the
from
airtime,
or
credit,
service
prospective
of
of prospective service credit, or airtime, from the San Diego City
was
costwas
fullcost
belowfull
('SDCERS')below
System ('SDCERS')
Retirement System
Employees' Retirement
Employees'
this
rescind
to
like
would
you
If
law.
the
under
authorized
not
not authorized under the law. If you would like to rescind this
provided
belowisisprovided
informationbelow
the information
purchase, the
unauthorizedpurchase,
legally unauthorized
legally
benefit.
your
for
for your benefit.
added.)
(Italicsadded.)
(Italics
follows:
as follows:
form as
request form
rescission request
the rescission
introduced the
letter introduced
The
The letter
for
agreement for
writtenagreement
statement isis aa written
thisstatement
Accompanying this
Accompanying
request
reversal
PSC
the
commence
to
execution
and
download
download and execution to commence the PSC reversal request
obtain
it,obtain
review it,
encouraged to
are encouraged
Employees are
process. Employees
process.
to review
document
the document
execute
desired,
and
needed
as
advice
professional
professional advice as needed and desired, execute the
implementation.
SDCERS for
same to
submit same
and submit
desired, and
ififdesired,
to SDCERS
for implementation.
added.)
(Italicsadded.)
(Italics
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The remainder
remainder of
ofthe
the informational
informationalstatement
statementaddressed
addressed various
various tax
tax issues
issues that
that might
might
The
arise from
fromrescission
rescissionofofaapurchase.
purchase. The
Therescission
rescissionrequest
requestform
formstated
statedthe
thereason
reasonfor
forthe
the
arise
rescission, i.e.,
i.e., that
that the
the purchase
purchase price
price of
ofthe
the service
service credits
credits was
was calculated
calculated ininerror,
error,and
andthe
the
rescission,
method by
bywhich
whichthe
thepurchase
purchase funds
funds were
wereto
tobe
bereturned
returnedto
tothe
the employee.
employee.
method
To establish
establish that
that an
an employer
employer has
has unlawfully
unlawfullybypassed
bypassedthe
the union,
union,the
thecharging
chargingparty
party
To
must demonstrate
demonstrate that
with its
its employees:
employees: (1)
(1)totocreate
createaa new
new
must
that the
the employer
employer dealt
dealt directly
directly with
policy of
ofgeneral
general application,
application, or
or (2)
(2) to
to obtain
obtain aa waiver
waiver or
or modification
modification of
ofexisting
existing policies
policies
policy
ofFresno
Fresno (2004)
(2004) PERB
PERB Decision
DecisionNo.
No.1731-M;
1731-M;Walnut
Walnut
applicable to
to those
those employees.
employees. (County
(County of
applicable
Valley Unified
UnifiedSchool
School District
District(1981)
(1981)PERB
PERBDecision
DecisionNo.
No.160.)
160.)An
Anemployer
employerdoes
doesnot
notbypass
bypass
Valley
the exclusive
representative by
directlywith
withemployees
employeesregarding
regarding
the
exclusive representative
by communicating
communicating directly
implementationof
ofan
an existing
existingpolicy
policyorormatters
mattersthat
thatare
are related,
related, but
but not
not contrary,
contrary, to
to the
the policy.
policy.
implementation
of employees
employees to
working
(See County
(See
County of
of Fresno,
Fresno, supra
supra [employer's
[employer's solicitation
solicitation of
to be
be part
part of
of "jail
"jail working
acknowledged
group" not
not bypass
bypass when
group"
when the
the memorandum
memorandum of
of understanding
understanding(MOU)
(MOU) explicitly
explicitly acknowledged
working group's
group's existence];
existence]; Walnut
Walnut Valley
Valley Unified
Unified School
School District,
District,supra
supra[requiring
[requiringemployee
employee
working
to sign
sign document
document confirming
confirmingemployee
employeevolunteered
volunteeredtotowork
workovertime
overtimewas
wasnot
notan
anattempt
attempttoto
to
obtain aa waiver
waiver of
ofovertime
overtime policy];
policy];East
EastTennessee
Tennessee Baptist
Baptist Hospital
Hospital (1991)
(1991) 304
304 NLRB
NLRB872,
872,
obtain
873 [because
[because collective
bargaining agreement
agreement allowed
allowed employer
employerto
tomake
makeshift
shiftchanges
changes as
as
873
collective bargaining
necessary for
adequate patient
surveyemployees
employeesabout
aboutshift
shift
necessary
for adequate
patient care,
care, employer
employer could
could lawfully
lawfully survey
preferences].)
preferences].)
Here, the
the City's
City's website
website postings
postings merely
merely informed
informedCity
Cityemployees
employeesthat
thatthe
the City
Cityhad
had
Here,
created aa procedure
rescinding aa purchase
purchase of
improperlypriced
pricedservice
servicecredits
creditsand
andprovided
provided
created
procedure for
for rescinding
of improperly
form to
to undo
undo such
such aa transaction
transaction ififthe
the employee
employee chose
chose to
do so.
so. The
The permissive
permissive language
language of
of
aa form
to do
the postings
employees. Nowhere
Nowhere
the
postings shows
shows rescission
rescission was
was an
anoptional
optional action
action on
on the
the part
part of
of City
City employees.
in the
the postings
postings did
did the
the City
City ask
ask or
or encourage
encourage employees
their ability
abilitytoto
in
employeesto
to waive
waive or
or modify
modify their
20
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purchase service
service credits
credits pursuant
23(6)(8) of
ofthe
the MOU.
MOU. Thus,
Thus,the
thewebsite
websitepostings
postings
purchase
pursuant to
to Article
Article 23(6)(B)
ofLocal
Local145.
145.
ontheir
theirface
facedid
didnot
notconstitute
constituteaabypass
bypass of
on
Further,while
whilethe
therecord
recordestablishes
establishesthat
thatthe
the city
cityattorney
attorneyintended
intendedfor
forhis
hisMarch
March7,7,
Further,
2006 news
news release
release to
to encourage
encourage City
Cityemployees
employeestotorescind
rescindservice
servicecredit
creditpurchases
purchasesmade
made
2006
below full
fullcost,
cost,I Idisagree
disagreethat
thatthis
thisencouragement
encouragement transformed
transformed the
website
below
the informational
informational website
postings into
into aa bypass
bypass of
145. The
The majority
majority cites
cites State
State o_fCalifornia
(Department of
of
postings
of Local
Local 145.
of California (Department
Transportation) (1996)
(1996) PERB
PERB Decision
Decision No.
No. 1176-S,
1176-S, Rio
Rio Hondo
Hondo Community
Community College
College District
District
Transportation)
141 NLRB
697, none
none
(1980)
PERB Decision
Decision No.
No. 128,
128, and
and Perkins
Company (1963)
(1980) PERB
Perkins Machine
Machine Company
(1963) 141
NLRB 697,
ofwhich
whichinvolved
involvedaabypass
bypassallegation,
allegation,for
forthe
theproposition
propositionthat
thatananemployer's
employer'sspeech
speechisis
of
encouragesemployees
employeestotoengage
engage in
in conduct
conduct that
that undermines
undermines the
the exclusive
exclusive
unlawfulififit itencourages
unlawful
representative. In
In both
both State
State of
ofCalifornia
California(Department
(DepartmentofofTransportation),
Transportation),supra,
supra,and
andPerkins
Perkins
representative.
Machine Company,
Company, supra,
to withdraw
withdraw from
fromthe
the
Machine
supra, the
the employer
employer notified
notified employees
employees of
of their
their right
right to
union during
duringthe
the "window
"windowperiod"
period"set
setforth
forthininthe
thecollective
collective
bargaining
agreementand
and
union
bargaining
agreement
provided aa pre-existing
pre-existing withdrawal
withdrawalform
formtotoemployees.
employees.The
Therespective
respectiveboards
boardsfound
foundthe
the
provided
employer'sconduct
conductlawful
lawfulbecause
because ititdid
didnot
notencourage
encourage withdrawal
withdrawalfrom
fromthe
theunion
unionbut
butmerely
merely
employer's
informed employees
employees of
ofan
an existing
existing right.
right. Relying
Relyingononthese
thesecases,
cases, the
the majority
majorityfinds
findsthe
theCity's
City's
informed
communicationsunlawful
unlawfulbecause
becausethey
theyencouraged
encouragedemployees
employeestototake
takeaction
actionusing
usingaanew
new
communications
procedure created
created by
by the
the City.
City.
procedure
undisputedthat
thatthe
theCity
Citycreated
createdaanew
newprocedure
procedure for
forrescinding
rescindingaapurchase
purchase of
of
ItItisisundisputed
improperlypriced
pricedservice
servicecredits
creditsand
andencouraged
encouraged employees
employees to
to use
use the
the procedure.
procedure. However,
However,
improperly
unlikeencouraging
encouragingemployees
employees to
to withdraw
withdrawfrom
fromthe
theunion,
union,this
thisconduct
conductdoes
doesnot
nothave
haveaa
unlike
detrimental effect
effecton
onLocal
Local145.
145.AsAsnoted
notedabove,
above,the
therescission
rescissionprocedure
procedureisisnot
notnecessarily
necessarily
detrimental
the
contrary to
to the
the negotiated
negotiated benefit
Article23(6)(B).
23(6)(8).Moreover,
Moreover,none
noneofofthe
contrary
benefit provided
provided in
in MOU
MOU Article
City'sadditional
additionalcommunications
communicationsabout
aboutthe
therescission
rescissionprocedure
procedureindicated
indicatedaadesire
desire for
for
City's
employees to
or modify
modify their
their ability
abilitytotopurchase
purchase retirement
retirement service
service credits.
credits. Thus,
Thus, unlike
unlike
employees
to waive
waive or
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the majority,
majority, II would
wouldfind
findthat
thatthe
theCity
Citydid
didnot
not"advocate
"advocateaa course
course of
of action
action in
in circumvention
circumvention
the
ofthe
the exclusive
exclusiverepresentative"
representative"by
byencouraging
encouragingemployees
employees to
to rescind
rescind their
theirpurchases
purchases of
of
of
improperlypriced
pricedservice
service credits.'
credits. 1Accordingly,
Accordingly,I conclude
I concludethe
theCity
Citydid
didnot
notbypass
bypass Local
Local145
145
improperly
by posting
posting the
the informational
informationalstatement
statementregarding
regardingretirement
retirementservice
servicecredit
creditand
andthe
therescission
rescission
by
request form
form on
onits
itswebsite,
website,ororby
byencouraging
encouragingemployees
employeestotorescind
rescindpurchases
purchases of
ofimproperly
improperly
request
priced service
service credits.
credits. IIwould
wouldtherefore
thereforedismiss
dismiss the
the complaint
complaintand
and underlying
underlying unfair
unfairpractice
practice
priced
charge inintheir
theirentirety.
entirety.
charge

1

Tothe
theextent
extentthe
themajority's
majority'sconclusion
conclusionisisbased
basedon
onthe
thepossible
possiblecoercive
coercive effect
effectofofthe
the
To
city attorney's
attorney's communications
communications in
ongoing well-publicized
including
city
in light
light of
of ongoing
well-publicized litigation,
litigation, including
criminal
charges,
over
the
improperly
priced
service
credits,
I
disagree
that
this
contextisis
criminal charges, over the improperly priced service credits, I disagree that this context
sufficient
to
establish
interference
with
employee
rights,
particularly
as
the
record
indicatesnono
sufficient to establish interference with employee rights, particularly as the record indicates
City
employee actually
actuallyrescinded
rescinded his
his or
orher
herpurchase
purchase of
ofretirement
retirementservice
servicecredits
creditsas
as aa result
resultof
of
City employee
the
communications.
the communications.
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APPENDIX
APPENDIX

NOTICE TO
TOEMPLOYEES
EMPLOYEES
NOTICE
POSTED BY
BY ORDER
ORDEROF
OFTHE
THE
POSTED
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT
EMPLOYMENTRELATIONS
RELATIONSBOARD
BOARD
PUBLIC
An
Agency
of
the
State
of
California
An Agency of the State of California

After
hearing in
Practice Case
Case No.
San Diego
Diego Firefighters,
Firefighters,
After aa hearing
in Unfair
Unfair Practice
No. LA-CE-294-M,
LA-CE-294-M, San
Local
145,
I.A.
F.
F.
v.
City
of
San
Diego
(Office
of
the
City
Attorney),
in
which
allparties
partieshad
had
Local 145, I.A.F.F. v. City of San Diego (Office of the City Attorney), in which all
the right
right to
to participate,
participate, itithas
has been
been found
found that
that the
the City
CityofofSan
SanDiego
Diego(Office
(Officeofofthe
theCity
City
the
Attorney)
(City)
violated
the
Meyers-Milias-Brown
Act
(MMBA),
Government
Code
Attorney) (City) violated the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (MMBA), Government Code
section3500
3500etetseq.
seq.
section
As aa result
result of
ofthis
this conduct,
conduct, we
we have
have been
been ordered
and we
As
ordered to
to post
post this
this Notice
Notice and
we will:
will:
A.

CEASE AND
AND DESIST
DESIST FROM:
FROM:
CEASE
11..

Bypassing the
the San
San Diego
Local 145,
145, I.A.F.F.
I.A.F.F. (Local
(Local145),
145),
Bypassing
Diego Firefighters,
Firefighters, Local
by
directly soliciting
solicitingbargaining
bargainingunit
unitemployees
employeestotorescind
rescindretirement
retirementservice
servicecredit
creditpurchases.
purchases.
by directly
2. Interfering
Interfering
employee
rights
directly
solicitingbargaining
bargainingunit
unit
2.
withwith
employee
rights
byby
directly
soliciting
employees
to
rescind
retirement
service
credit
purchases.
employees to rescind retirement service credit purchases.
3.
Interfering with
withLocal
Local145's
145'sright
righttotorepresent
representemployees
employees by
by directly
directly
3.
Interfering
soliciting
bargaining
unit
employees
to
rescind
retirement
servicecredit
creditpurchases.
purchases.
soliciting bargaining unit employees to rescind retirement service
B.
B.

TAKE THE
THE FOLLOWING
FOLLOWING AFFIRMATIVE
AFFIRMATIVEACTIONS
ACTIONSDESIGNED
DESIGNEDTO
TO
TAKE
EFFECTUATE THE
THE POLICIES
POLICIES OF THE MMBA:
MMBA:
EFFECTUATE

Notifyany
anybargaining
bargainingunit
unitemployee
employeerepresented
represented by
by Local
Local 145
145 who
who
11..
Notify
submitted
a
Request
to
Rescind
Purchase
of
Prospective
Service
Credit
Agreement,
that
they
submitted a Request to Rescind Purchase of Prospective Service Credit Agreement, that they
may withdraw
withdrawthe
therescission
rescission and
and have
have their
their retirement
retirementservice
servicecredits
creditsrestored.
restored.
may
2.
Include with
withany
anyposting
posting on
on the
the city
cityattorney's
attorney'swebsite,
website, regarding
regarding
2.
Include
rescission
of
retirement
service
credit
purchases,
a
prominent
notation
that
the
proceduredoes
does
rescission of retirement service credit purchases, a prominent notation that the procedure
not
apply
to
bargaining
unit
employees
represented
by
Local
145.
not apply to bargaining unit employees represented by Local 145.
Dated: - - - - - - - - -

CITY OF
OF SAN
SAN DIEGO
DIEGO (OFFICE
(OFFICE OF
OF THE
THECITY
CITY
CITY
ATTORNEY)
ATTORNEY)
By: - - - - - - - - - - - - - - By:
Authorized Agent
Agent
Authorized

THIS
ITMUST
MUSTREMAIN
REMAINPOSTED
POSTED FOR
FOR AT
AT LEAST
LEAST THIRTY
THIRTY
THIS IS
IS AN OFFICIAL NOTICE. IT
WORKDAYS FROM
FROM THE
THE DATE
DATEOF
OF POSTING
POSTING AND
AND MUST
MUSTNOT
NOTBE
BE
(30) CONSECUTIVE WORKDAYS
REDUCED
IN SIZE,
SIZE, DEFACED,
DEFACED, ALTERED
ALTEREDOR
ORCOVERED
COVERED WITH
WITHANY
ANYOTHER
OTHER
REDUCED IN
MATERIAL.
MATERIAL.

